
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TW'ENTY-THIRD SE!jS/ON 

Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 33: 
Report of the Commissioner-General of the 

United Nations Relief and Works Agency for 
Palestine Refugees in the Near East (con-

Page 

tinued) . . . . • • • • • • • • • • . • • • • • • • • • • 1 

Chairman: Mr. Abdulrahim Abby FARAH 
(Somalia). 

AGENDA ITEM 33 

Report of the Commissioner-General of the United 
Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine 
Refugees in the Near East (continued) (A/7213 1 A/ 
SPC/1261 A/SPC/127 1 A/SPC/L.165 1 A/SPC/L.166 
and Add.1 1 A/SPC/L.167 and Add.1 1 A/SPC/L.168 1 

A/SPC/L.169) 

1. The CHAIRMAN suggested that, of the documents 
before it (A/SPC/L.167 and Add,1 and A/SPC/L.168), 
the Committee should first consider draft resolution 
A/SPC/L.167 and Add,1, upon which a roll-call vote 
had been requested. 

A vote was taken by roll-call. 

Jamaica, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman, 
was called upon to vote first. 

In favour: Japan, Jordan, Kenya, Kuwait, Lebanon, 
Lesotho, Liberia, Libya, Luxembourg, Malaysia, 
Maldive Islands, Mauritania, Mexico, Mongolia, 
Morocco, Netherlands, New Zealand, Nicaragua, Ni
geria, Norway, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, 
Poland, Romama, Rwanda, Saudi Arabia, Senegal, 
Somalia, Spain, Sudan, Sweden, Syria, Thailand, Togo, 
Tunisia, Turkey, Uganda, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, United 
Arab Republic, United Kingdom of Great Britain and 
Northern Ireland, United States of America, Uruguay, 
Venezuela, Yugoslavia, Zambia, Afghanistan, Algeria, 
Australia, Austria, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, Bulgaria, 
Burundi, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, Cam
bodia, Canada, Chile, China, Colombia, Congo (Demo
cratic Republic of), Costa Rica, Cyprus, Czecho
slovakia, Dahomey, Denmark, Dominican Republic, 
Ecuador, El Salvador, Ethiopia, Finland, France, 
Gabon, Gambia, Ghana, Greece, Honduras, Hungary, 
Iceland, India, Indonesia, Iran, Ireland, Israel, Italy. 

Against: None. 

The draft resolution was adoptedby88votes to none. 

2. The CHAIRMAN said that, after the explanations 
of vote on the resolutionsA/SPC/L.165,A/SPC/L,166 

1 

SPECIAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE, 634th 
MEETING 

Thursday, 12 December 1968, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

NEW YORK 

and Add.1 and A/SPC/L.167 and Add.1, the Committee 
would consider the last draft resolution before it 
(A/SPC /L.168). 

3. Mr. SAYEGH (Kuwait) said that his delegation had 
voted in favour of draft resolution A/SPC /L.166 and 
Add.1 on the understanding first, that the right of the 
newly displaced persons and refugees to return to 
their homes and former places of residence was not 
contingent upon any other factors and secondly, that 
their return was based on a right and not on sufferance, 
It therefore assumed that the provision of the fourth 
preambular paragraph was an additional practical 
reason for their speedy return and did not constitute 
the sole, or even the principal, juridical basis for 
their return, 

4. With regard to draft resolution A/SPC/L.165, his 
delegation had noted the significance of the inclusion 
of more than one reference to paragraph 11 of General 
Assembly resolution 194 (III). It understood that those 
were not routine echoes of past and inoperable reso
lutions, as had been suggested, but rather significant 
substantive reaffirmations of the rights of the Pales
tinians and of the obligations of the United Nations and 
Israel towards them. 

5. His delegation had voted m favour of draft reso
lution A/SPC/L.167 and Add.1 on the understanding 
that the relief of newly displaced persons should in no 
sense be misconstrued as a reason for delaying their 
right to return to their homes. 

6. Mr. DE SOUZA (Dahomey) considered that the 
draft resolutions represented an accurate reflection 
of the various opinions expressed during the general 
debate. The question of Palestine refugees was a 
humanitarian problem for which the United Nations 
was in duty bound to find an urgent solution. His dele
gation hoped that, despite its present financial diffi
culties, more generous contributions on the part of 
donor States would enable UNRWA to continue its 
constructive work. His delegation had therefore voted 
in favour of draft resolutions A/SPC/L.165 and 
A/SPC/L.167 and Add.l. 

7. It wished to emphasize, however, that UNRWA 
could be only a palliative. The humanitarian aspect of 
the refugee problem could not be dissociated from its 
political context. It was a consequence of the tension 
and insecurity which had prevailed in the Middle East 
for so many years and could be resolved only by a 
negotiated and lasting peace which would guarantee 
secure borders to all States in the region and recognize 
their right to existence. 

8. Therefore, even though it shared the humanitarian 
concern which motivated its sponsors, his delegation 
had not been able to support resolution A/SPC/L.166 

A/SPC/SR.634 



2 General Assembly - Twenty-third Session - Special Political Committee 

and Add,1 because it contained no reference to the 
need for peace and for a final settlement of the 
question. 

9, lvlr, FHACK!EWICZ (Poland) said lhat, although 
hi.s delegation shared the douLts expressed by the 
representative of lhe Soviet Union about draft reso
lution A/SPC/L,l67 and Add.l. it had voted in favour 
of the resoldwn hecause of its humanitarian content 
and the mterest of the Arab countries in the problems 
involved. The socialist group countnes considered 
however that the financial responsibilities should rest 
m amly on partws which adopted a complacent attitude 
towards the Israel action. 

:10. The sociahst group countries thought that draft 
resolutio!l A/SPC /L.l67 and Add,1 shonld in no way 
delay the effective 1mplemenlation of the pnority draft 
resolution A/SPC/L.l66 and Add.1, which provided 
for the speedy return of all refugees to their home
land, They also understood that it applied to refugees 
from all the AraL territories-.Jordan, Umted Arab 
Rephbltc, Syna-·occup1ed in June 1967. The over
wbe lrning vote in favour of clraft resolutwns A /SPC / 
Ll65, A/SPC/L.166 and Add.1 and A/SPC /L.167 
clnd Add.l was a clear inchcation of the Committee's 
un<J.nirnous determination to solve the refugee problem, 

ll, r,rr. TOMER (Syria) emphasized that it was no 
mere coincidence that the Comm1ttee had given 
pnority to draft resolution A/SPC/L.166 and Add.l. 
His delegcttwn had voted for it because its first pre
ambular paragraph recalled Security Council reso
lution 237 (1967) and the second reaffirmed General 
Assembly resolution 2252 (ES-V) and because opera
tive paragraph 1 sa1d that the General Assembly 
callc·d upon the Government of Israel to take effective 
and irr,medwte steps for the return without delay of 
those inhabitants who had fled the areas since the 
outbreak of hostilit1es. H1s clelegatwn wished to 
emphasize the unconditional and comprehens1ve nature 
of the draft resolution. The only vote against 1t had 
in fact been that of Israel, 

12. The Syrian delegation had also voted in favour 
of draft resolutwn A /SPC /L,165, primarily because 
paragraphs 4 and 8 repeated and reaffirmed para
graph 11 of General Assemllly resolution 194 (III), 
which recognized the inalienallle rights of the Arab 
refugees. 

13. Il had also voted in favour of draft resolution 
A/SPC/L.167 and Add.l and w1shed to express its 
appreciation of the humanitarian sp1rit wh1ch had 
moved 1ts sponsors. The reference in paragraph 2 
of the draft to the proviswn of humamtarian as
sistance on an emergency basis and as a temporary 
measnre emphasized that that assistance was only 
complementary and that priority should be given to 
the return of the refugees, as stipulated unconditionally 
in draft resolution A/SPC/L.166 and Add.l. 

14. Mr. MOLEFHE (Botswana), Mr. BRECKENRIDGE 
(Ceylon), Mr. TOURE (Guinea), Mr. RAOUF (Iraq), 
Mr. l\lAIGA (Mali), Mr. HASSANE (N1ger), Mr. ALI 
(Pakistan), Mr. SALIM (Umted Hepublic of Tanzania) 
and Mr. KHODH (Yemen) said that, had they been 
present at the time of the votmg, they would have 
voted in favour of draft resolutwn A/SPC/L.167 and 
Add.L 

15. The CHAIHMAN said that, as none of the sponsors 
of the next draft resolution before the Comrmttee 
(A/SPC/L.168) was able to mtroduce 1t immediately, 
they had requested a suspension of the meetiag for 
half an hour. In the absence of anv ob]ectwn, he would 
take it that the Committee agreed to that request, 

It was so decided. 

The meeting was suspended at 11.50 a.m. andre
sumed at 12.25 p.m. 

16. Mr. CHA! (Secretary of the Ccmm1ttee) mformed 
members of the Committee that a limited number L'f 
copies cf the \Vorking Paper prefJz,rcd h:-. the Sc•cn-
tariat m 1961 for the l'mted Natwns c,mclliat~on 
Commission for Palestine, which had been mentioned 
by the representative of Syn::~ at tlte previvus mee'.
ing ,.0' was available to any members of th0 Cor.1~11ittee 
interested. 

17. Mr. TOMER (Syna) thanked che Secretary fm: 
that mformatwn hul proposed that, m new ot the 
importance of the document and the limited number 
of copies available, it should be reissued after the 
current session. 

18. The CHAIHMAN said that, m the nbsence of any 
objection he would take 1t that 1t was the w1sh or th~ 
Committee that the document in question sbould be 
reissued after the session, 

It was so decided. 

19. Mr. ALI (Pakistan), introducmg draft resolutior.. 
A/SPC/L.168 on behalf of the sponsors, said that they 
had been motivated solely by considerations of inter
national law, JUstice aml eqlllty and hoped that the 
same consideration would prevail m the Committee, 

20. For the past twenty years, the Com:::mttee had 
discussed the repatriation and rehabilitation of the 
Palestinian Arab refugees, the mandote of llNHW.\ 
had been extended and the Comrmssioner-General 
had reported that the Palestinian Arabs had not given 
up their attachment to lheir ancestral l1omes, The 
rights of those refugees were clear ancl inolien:lble 
and had been recognized by thf' re leva:1t l'nit2d N a-· 
twns resolutions. Paragraph 4 of draft l'esnlution 
A /SPC IL.165, which had been adopted at the precec:in:2; 
meetmg had clearly recognized the righrs o~ those 
refugees to their homcs and property by requasdng 
the t·nited Nations Conciliation Commission for Pales
tine to exert continued efforts towards the lill!Jlemen
talion of paragraph 11 of General Assembly reso
lution 194 (III). 

21. Pending that repatriation, the refugees should 
receive income from the property they had l2ft behind 
111 Israel in order to enable lhem to lead their llves 
in dignity on their own mcome. In proposmg that the 
Fnited Nations should appomt a custod1an lo protect 
and administer Arab property. as seLo; and property 
rights in Israel, his delegation had been guiclccl by the 
pertinent provisions of General Assembly resolulic•n 
394 (V) as well as by estabhshecl principlesgoverning 
clal!ns of restitution of properly or payn•ent of com
pensation. Nehenuah Robmson, lhe author of 
Indemnities and Heparations, published in 19-14 by the 
Institute of Jewish Affairs of the Wo:dd Jewish Con-

.!; Aj AC,25, \\ .H1 1 Eev.2 1Jl1lrnevgraphed). 



634th meeting - 12 December 1968 3 

grec;.-;, made a strong case for the interventwn of the 
United Nations on behalf of those victims of war who 
would rel<Win in or would be willmg to return to their 
furr:1er homeland, and suggested the establishment of 
internationally organized courts or simllar bodies 
empowered to make and execute decisions irrespective 
of the residence of the respondents and the location 
of tJ1e goods. The United Nations could not afford to 
go back on the pledge it had made to the Palestine 
refugees. 

22. The draft resolutwn recalled General Assembly 
resolution 394 (V) which, with General Assembly reso
lutwn 194 (III), had been designed to protect the 
property and rights of the Palestine Arab refugees. 
Those resolutions were solemn international under
taklllgs and therefore could not he disregarded or 
relegated to oblivion, The sponsors considered the 
creation of an office of United Nations custodian to 
admmister Arab property in Israel necessary in 
order fully to implement paragraph 11 of General 
Assembly resolution 194 (III) wh1ch dealt with the 
right of refugees to return to their homes and the 
payment of compensation to them, The latter had two 
different aspects: payment of compensation to refugees 
who chose not to return home and payment of com
pensation to refugees for loss of or damage to property 
which, under principles of internatwnal law or in 
equity, should be made good by the Governments or 
authorities responsible, It was with a view to imple
menting both aspects of that paragraph that para
graph 2 (g) of General Assembly resolution 394 (V) 
had dnected the United Natwns Conclliatlon Com
m1sa1on for Palestine to establish an office which 
wou!J make such arrangements as it considered neces
sary for the assessment and payment of compensation 
to Palestine Arab refugees, 

23. Repatriation and compensation were the essen
tials of an intematwnal pledge given to the people of 
Palestine by the United Nations as a consequence of 
its decision to establish a Jewish State in that country. 
t:ni;il that pledge was honoured, the matter remamed 
the responsibility of the United Nations, which would. 
forfett its moral capital if it condoned the conflscation 
by Israel of the Arab property, assets and property 
rights in Palestine. 

24. Mr. COMA Y (Israel) expressed his surprise 
that the Committee should be asked to deal once more 
w1th a proposal which had appeared in one form or 
another practically every year smce the hfteenth 
sess'on of the General Assembly and which had always 
been e1ther withdrawn or rejectedo It was useless to 
CO\'er up its weaknesses with purely sentimental 
appeals. The question was whether there was any 
juridical basis at all for taking the action proposed 
and the answe:c was in the negative, There were no 
grounds on which the United Nations could appomt 
such a custodian or directly intervene with regard 
to private property claims within the territory of a 
sovereign Member State. The relevant general prin
ciples of international law were that properties within 
the borders of a sovereign State were exclusively 
sub~ect ~o the domestic laws of that State and that the 
United Nations had no competence under its Charter 
or otherwise to intervene in the regulation of such 
propercy rights within the Stateo That applied to the 

income from the property as much as to the property 
Itself and was not altered in any way by the fact that 
the individual claimants happened to he refugees, 
whether or not they were receiving assistance from 
the United Nations. 

25, Various reasons m1ght be suggested for alleging 
that those general principles should not be apphed to 
abandoned properties in Israel or that Israel sover
eignty was subject to some special limitatwn, but 
none had any foundation. The representatives of the 
Arab countries had not suggested at any time that a 
llnited Nations custodian should be appointed to take 
over confiscated Jewish property in Iraq, Egypt or 
Jordan, Although mdividual States had often taken 
over private property for various reasons, with or 
\vilhout compensation, an international property custo
dian had never been imposed upon a sovereign State, 
Israel's sovereignty and statehood could not be limited 
by some special provision since Article 2 (1) of the 
Charter categorically stated that the Organization was 
based on the principle of the sovereign equality of all 
Member States. The AraJJ States would no doubt argue 
that such a limitation upon Israel's sovereignty den ved 
from the partition deciswn (General Assembly reso
lution 181 (Ill). It was ironical that they should mvoke 
the terms of the resolution which they had rejected 

·and because of which they had gone to war. Attached 
to that resolution, which called for the setting up of 
independent .Jewish and Arab States, was the form of 
a declaration which those two States would make 
reciprocally in each other's favour, one of the provi
sions of which was to lay down a special procedure 
in case of the expropriatwn for public purposes of 
property belonging to Arab citizens of the Jewish 
State and .Jewish citizens of the Arab Stateo The Arab 
State had never come into existence; a war had inter
vened and the reciprocal declaration had never been 
made. It would be easy to refute such an argument 
therefore, since it was based upon a non-existent 
declaration. 

260 Were the General Assembly to lay down the 
Palestine Arab refugees 1 entitlement in law, as stated 
in the first paragraph of the draft resolution, it would 
amount to a legal judgement setting aside domestic 
legislation of a Member State. The taking over of 
derelict and abandoned land and properties in Israel 
for the purpose of brmging them mto productive use 
had been effected by due process of law, subject to 
an offer of compensationo For twelve years the Israel 
authorities had co-operated w1th the techmcal office 
of the Conciliation Commission in compiling an inven
tory of those properties as a basis for future com
pensation claims, The implications of any draft reso
lutions like the one under discussion would be that 
the property legislation of any Member State was 
subject to the approval or veto of other States Members 
of the Organization, 

27. Replying to the representative of Pakistan, he 
pointed out that the second preambular paragraph of 
draft resolution A/SPC/L,168 was a distortion, not an 
affirmation of General Assembly resolution 394 (V) 
which had only directed the United Nations Con
ciliation Commission to continue consultations with 
the parties concerned regarding measures about 
property; as a good offices body, it had no power to 



4 General Assembly - Twenty-third Session - Special Political Committee 

prescribe on its own measures of the kind suggested 
in the text of the draft resolution, The fact that a 
previous resolution had had to he rewritten to suit 
the purpose of the present draft showed that the 
case for the draft resolution was, in any case, an 
extremely weak one. 

28. The sponsors seemed, furthermore, to admit 
that the Conciliation Commission had no special 
authority in the matter, as no mention was made of 
that body in the operat1 ve part of the draft resolution. 
In operative paragraph 1, it was the Secretary
General who was requested to take all appropriate 
steps to have a custodian appointed, and under para
graph 3 the custodian was to report not to the Com
mission, hut to the General Assembly. But if the 
Comm1ssion was not empowered to appoint a custodian, 
neither was the Secretary-General, nor even the 
General Assembly. 

29, As they had no valid grounds for their proposal, 
the sponsors had tried to appeal to sentiment. In that 
connexion, he pointed out that the half-million Jewish 
refugees from Arab countries who had been settled 
in Israel had lost most of the property which they had 
left behind. That property had been confiscated, but 
the Governments of the countries concerned had never 
made a compensation offer corresponding to that made 
by Israel in raspect of abandoned Arab properties. 
In those circumstances, the reference in the f1rst 
preambular paragraph to the principles of justice 
and equity was quite unnecessary; there could be no 
difference in law, in justice or in equity between the 
claims of Arab and of Jewish property owners. 

30, With regard to income, he pointed out that the 
Israel Government had indeed spent vast sums on 
rehabilitating and developing derelict lands and 
property, but as it had not made any financial profit 
on them, it was rather anomalous to cast the United 
Nations in the role of rent collector. 

31. In conclusion, he drew attention to the fact that 
although all the sponsors of draft resolution A /SPC I 
L,168 maintained official relations with the Arab 
States, not one of them had seen fit to maintam 
official relations with the State of Israel. While he 
recognized the right of any delegation to sponsor any 
proposal it wished, the facts seemed to show that the 
proposal made m the draft resolution was of a political, 
not a humanitarian nature. It was indeed, an act of 
irresponsib1lity at a time when the mternational com
munity should be trying to 1mprove the prospects for 
an Arab-Israel peace. Moreover, the whole refugee 
question came within the scope ofthe Jarring mission, 
and once that problem had been resolved, any property 
and compensation claims would automatically be 
settled. His delegation was, therefore, strongly 
opposed to the proposal, and urged that it should be 
rejected as in previous years. He reserved the nght 
to reply to any further arguments that m1ght be put 
forward at a later stage of the debate. 

32, The CHAIRMAN, in pursuance of adecision taken 
by the Committee at its 616th meeting concerning a 
letter dated 11 November 1968 (A/SPC/126), stated 
that, if there were no objections, he would invite 
Mr. Nakhleh to address the Committee on draft reso
lution A/SPC /L.168, 

It was so decided. 

33. Mr. NAKHLEH (speaking as one of the persons 
constituting the Palestine Arab delegation, in ac
cordance with the decision taken by the Committee 
at its 616th meeting, which did not imply recognition of 
that delegation by the Committee) said that by General 
Assembly resolution 394 (V), the United Nations had 
recognized its legal and moral obligations to protect 
the rights, properties and assets of the Arabs of 
Pales tine, The draft resolution at present before the 
Committee echoed a passage from the above-men
tioned resolution, 'Vhich had been distorted by 
Mr. Comay, but which in fact directed the United 
Nations Conciliation Commission for Palestine to 
establish an office which, under the direction of the 
Commission, would continue consultations with the 
bodies concerned regarding measures for the protec
tion of the rights, property, and interests of the 
refugees. As the United Nations had adopted reso
lution 394 (V) in accordance with the principles of 
international law 1t should also adopt the five-Power 
draft resolution, 

34, He rejected as illegal, immoral and unjust and, 
moreover, as a violation of the Charter of the United 
Nations and the principles of international law 
Mr. Comay's contention that the United Nations had no 
right to intervene because the lands in question had 
been incorporated into the economy, and because the 
authorities of Tel Aviv had sovereignty over them. 
Unfortunately, the Committee had in the past been 
prevented from taking the necessary decision because 
certain Western Powers had sided against the Arab 
States in all aspects of the Palestine problem, even 
to the extent of depriving the Palestine Arabs of their 
legal and human rights to enjoy the income from their 
properties and assets. Article 17 (2) of the Universal 
D.eclaration of Human Rights, whlCh stated that no 
one should be arbitrarily deprived of his property, 
was still not applied to the Palestine Arabs, even in 
the year 1968, which marked the twentieth anniversary 
of the Universal Declaration and which had been de
signated International Year for Human Rights. The 
present situation was also contrary to the provisions 
of the International Covenants on Human Rights, the 
Declaration on the Granting ofindependence to Colonial 
Countries and Peoples and accepted principles of 
international law, inter alia, those laid down in 
articles 46 and 47 of the Hague Regulations and in the 
judgement of the International Military Tribunal at 
N Urn berg, relating to private property and the protec
tion of private rights. Those principles, had, more
over, been upheld and implemented in all those Western 
countries wh1ch had consistently voted against a draft 
resolution which would give the people of Palestine 
the right to enjoy the assets from their properties. 

35, The assertion of Mr. Comay, when challenged 
on the basis of such principles, that the so-called 
State of Israel had sovereignty over the property of 
the Arab Palestine people was invalid; the so-called 
State of Israel had no sovereignty because it had 
never been a State either in law or in fact. It was 
merely a racist colonial regime of occupation which 
had been recognized by some States in contravention 
of international law. In any case, States which did 
exercise sovereignty were subject to the obligations 
of international law, and had undertaken, by the 
terms of the Charter of the United Nations to respect 



634th meeting - 12 December 1968 5 

human rights and fundamental freedoms and to fulfil 
in good faith the obligations assumed by them in ac
cordance with the Charter, The established principle 
of international law regarding State responsibility 
could be said to be that a State could not invoke its 
municipal legislation as a reason for avoiding its 
international , obligations, and that a State was 
crimmally and physically liable for acts which con
travened international law. The so-called State of 
Israel had also violated the principles summarized 
by the International Law Commission with regard to 
expropriation by a State of properties in its domain. 
The Commission had stated that the action of a State 
was considered arbitrary and unlawful if (~) it was 
contrary to international law; ():?) the State was for
bidden to take action under a treaty or international 
conventions; (Q) the method of procedure constituted 
a denial of justice; (Q) the State's action discriminated 
between nationals and aliens; (~) the expropriation was 
considered as an unjust enrichment. He submitted 
that all those grounds applied to the case in point. 
When the Jews had invaded Palestine, a minority of 
Jews had expelled the majority of the populatwn, 
proclaimed themselves illegally as a State and de
signed so-called laws which deprived the lawful 
inhabitants of their properties and of the use and 
enjoyment of the income therefrom. 

36. The present situation was also a contravention 
of the principles submitted by the International Law 
Commission to the effect that if the owner of a certain 
property owned the land before a law of expropriation 
was passed, then the law in question could not enable 
the State to expropriate that owner's property. But 
although the properties of the Palestine Arabs had 
existed for over 2,000 years, Israel had designed 
laws with the intention of confiscating the rights of the 
Palestine Arabs, and now asserted before the Com
mittee and the General Assembly that the questions 
must be dealt with under its domestic laws. All the 
authorities on international law upheld the principles 
of the supremacy of international law over the 
sovereignty of any State, For the benefit of the 
United States delegation and some of the Latin 

Litho m U.N. 

American delegations, he pointed out that article 5 
of the Charter of the Organization of American States 
stated that "international law is the standard of conduct 
of States in their reciprocal relations" and that "inter
national order consists essentially of ••. the faithful 
fulfilment of obligations derived from treaties and 
other sources of international law". If such recognized 
principles of international law were to be flouted, then 
all other interventions by the United Nations would 
become null and void, 

37. In conclusion, he pointed out that Article 1 of the 
Charter of the United Nations stated that the United 
Nations must peacefully solve all disputes "in con
formity with the principles of justice and international 
law". That phrase had been added to the original draft 
at the San Francisco Conference because all dele
gations had insisted that a settlement could not be 
made by expediency or on political grounds but must 
be in accordance with those principles. 

38. The Palestine Arabs were pleading for respect 
for their human rights, in conformity with Articles 55 
and 56 of the Charter, and respect for their property, 
and were asking the Committee to apply international 
law and justice to that end, If the United Nations could 
not decide the issue, the United States and the other 
Western Powers which opposed the rights of the 
Palestine Arabs should refer the matter in question 
and all other issues of the Palestine question to the 
International Court of Justice. 

39. Finally, he appealed to the Western Powers which 
had always voted against the Palestine Arabs and had 
enabled the invaders to continue to usurp their 
property and their rights to abstain at least on the 
draft resolution (A/SPC /L.168) if they could not bring 
themselves to vote for it, 

40, The CHAIRMAN noted that as there were six 
more speakers on the list, the Committee would 
resume its consideration of the item the following 
morning. 

The meeting rose at 1.30 p.m. 

77111-December 1970-1,950 


